
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

v. Cr. No. 07- -01-

ROBERT WOLFFE

INDICTMENT

THE GRAND JURY CHARGES:

COUNT ONE
Accessory After the Fact

18 U.S.C. §3

1.  On or about January 18, 2007, the last day of a trial that

started on January 9, a jury returned verdicts convicting Edward

Brown and Elaine Brown of conspiracy and a number of federal tax

crimes. 

2.  The jury returned its verdict against Edward Brown in his

absence.  After the third day of evidence, January 11, 2007, Edward

Brown returned to his and Elaine Brown’s joint residence in

Plainfield, N.H., and never came back to court.  On January 12,

2007, a federal warrant was issued for Edward Brown’s arrest based

upon his failure to appear for the completion of his trial.  

3.   Elaine Brown also failed to appear for what was to be the

fourth day of evidence but, after a brief continuance of the

proceedings, she returned for the remainder of the trial. 

Whereupon she was convicted and then released on bail pending

sentencing.  Shortly thereafter, however, she was charged with

violating conditions of her release pending sentencing by removing
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an electronic monitoring ankle bracelet and returning to her

residence where Ed Brown remained.  A federal warrant was issued

for her arrest.

4. On April 24, 2007, Edward Brown and Elaine Brown were

each sentenced to sixty-three (63) months in prison.  Neither

Edward Brown nor Elaine Brown appeared for the sentencing

proceeding and the  sentences against them were imposed in their

absence.

5.  While the Browns have been fugitives, officers of the

United States Marshals Service have made efforts to arrest them.

During the same period of time, the Browns have remained inside the

boundaries of the property on which their home is located, and they

have publicly stated their intention to forcibly resist any effort

to arrest them.

6.  Beginning at a date uncertain but in or about January 2007

and continuing through to the date of this Indictment, in the

District of New Hampshire and elsewhere, the defendant,

ROBERT WOLFFE,

knowing that offenses against the United States had been committed

by Edward Brown and Elaine Brown, to wit:  conspiracy and a number

of federal tax crimes, received, relieved, comforted and assisted

Edward Brown and Elaine Brown in order to hinder and prevent their

apprehension and punishment, in violation of Title 18, United

States Code, Section 3.
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7.  Robert Wolffe has received, relieved, comforted and

assisted Edward Brown and Elaine Brown in order to hinder and

prevent their apprehension and punishment in that he has aided them

and provided to them personal and material support, including but

not limited to the following:

a.  providing a 1992 Chevrolet Caprice to the Browns

which has been used by other supporters of the Browns to run

errands and gather supplies for the Browns; 

b.  conducting counter-surveillance of the Deputy U.S.

Marshals;

c.  providing armed security for the Browns;

d.  making his residence available as a point of trans-

shipment for supplies to the Browns, including food, for delivery

to the Browns.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 3.
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September 12, 2007

TRUE BILL

/s/ Grand Jury Foreperson
Grand Jury Foreperson

Thomas P. Colantuono
United States Attorney

By: /s/ Arnold H. Huftalen      
    Arnold H. Huftalen
    Assistant United States Attorney

By: /s/ Robert M. Kinsella       
    Robert M. Kinsella
    Assistant United States Attorney


